          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL

          8  PROTECTION

          9  -------------------------------x

         10                 February 26, 2007

                            Start:  1:20 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 2:40 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Committee Room

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         JAMES GENNARO

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Bill DeBlasio

         18                                 Oliver Koppell

                                            Domenic Recchia

         19                                 Kendall Stewart

                                            Peter Vallone, Jr.

         20                                 Thomas White

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Michael Schnall

          4  Director of Government Relations

             New York City Department of Parks and Recreation

          5

             Angela Licata

          6  Deputy Commissioner

             New York City Department of Environmental Protection

          7

             Mark Lanaghan

          8  New York City Department of Environmental Protection

          9  Eugenia Flatow

             Chair

         10  New York City Soil Water Conservation District

         11  Robert Pirani

             Director, Environmental Programs

         12  Regional Plan Association

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm just going

          3  to start for the purposes of reading something into

          4  the record that we have to do. We're going to be

          5  having a vote.  First, where are my manners? Good

          6  afternoon.  Good afternoon.  I'll have a sort of

          7  more formal opening statement when we consider the

          8  matter of Intro 506.  But for the matter of Intro

          9  505, which will be the extension of your wetlands

         10  transfer bill, I'm going to read something into the

         11  record as a prelude for a Committee vote on that

         12  matter.

         13                 We're joined by Council Member

         14  Kendall Stewart.  And so let me just read something

         15  into the record on 505, then we'll hear a statement

         16  from the Parks Department regarding that and then we

         17  can take a vote if we have a quorum, if not we'll

         18  move into the matter of 506.  Okay.  505.

         19                 On August 17, 2005, the Council

         20  passed and on August 31, 2005 the Mayor signed Intro

         21  566A which became Local Law 83 of 2005 which created

         22  a temporary task force to study the technical,

         23  legal, environmental and economic feasibility of

         24  transferring City- owned wetlands to the

         25  jurisdiction of the Parks Department.  Local Law 83
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          2  provides that Task Force members shall serve for a

          3  period of nine months, after which time such task

          4  force shall cease to exist and that it submit a

          5  report containing its conclusions and

          6  recommendations to the Mayor and the Speaker of the

          7  Council no later than three months before such

          8  expiration.  In addition, the Law also requires the

          9  Mayor, or his or her designee, to submit a report to

         10  the Speaker of the Council no later than six months

         11  after the submission of the task force report,

         12  regarding the transfer of City-owned wetlands to the

         13  Department of Parks and Recreation deemed feasible

         14  for such transfer by the Task Force.  In response to

         15  a request made by the co-chairs of the temporary

         16  Wetland Task Force, the Council passed Intro 409

         17  which became Local Law 37 of 2006 in August of last

         18  year, which did extend the life of the Task Force

         19  until February 15, 2007 and which, in effect,

         20  provided a three month extension of time for the

         21  Task Force to complete its charge of inventorying

         22  City-owned wetlands and determining the feasibility

         23  of transferring those wetlands to the jurisdiction

         24  of the Department of Parks.  It has become clear,

         25  however, that further time is needed for the Task
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          2  Force to complete its charge. Specifically, the

          3  finalization of the Task Force report awaits the

          4  Administration's completion of the study it will

          5  undertake on the issues regarding Arlington Marsh

          6  Cove, a wetlands in Staten Island.  Intro Number 505

          7  pushes out the life of the Task Force until December

          8  31, 2007.

          9                 So that's the statement I had to read

         10  into the record for Intro 505, which would be the

         11  extension to December 31, 2007.  I know that we have

         12  a statement by the Parks Department. Michael, where

         13  are you?  Michael, Michael Schnall.  Here we go. And

         14  so, Michael, we'd like you to ask you to come

         15  forward.  I know that you're on a time commitment.

         16  It's my understanding that you have to leave in one

         17  minute.  Okay, that's what I understood.  You had to

         18  leave by 1:20.  Up, it's 1:20 now!  I'm glad you

         19  could be with us today.

         20                 MR. SCHNALL: It's good seeing you,

         21  too, and thank you for indulging the time

         22  constraint.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.  What

         24  we'll do is, you know what, just, you're going to be

         25  reading a statement, just jump right in stating it
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          2  for the record and we'll dispense with the swearing

          3  in and all that for this case because I know you're

          4  in a hurry.  And so, Michael, please.

          5                 MR. SCHNALL: Good afternoon, Chairman

          6  Gennaro, members of the Committee.  I am Mike

          7  Schnall, Director of Government Relations of Parks.

          8  My colleague, Bill Tye, Director of the Natural

          9  Resources Group at Parks and Co-Chair of the

         10  Wetlands Transfer Task Force, would like me to

         11  extend his apologies that he could not attend today.

         12  On behalf of Commissioner Benepe, I'd like to thank

         13  you for the opportunity to attend today to discuss

         14  Intro to 505, which is before the committee.

         15                 As you well know, the Wetlands

         16  Transfer Task Force was charged with the task of

         17  creating an inventory of City- owned wetlands and

         18  reviewing the feasibility of transferring those

         19  wetlands to the jurisdiction of Parks for long- term

         20  protection.

         21                 During its initial term, the Task

         22  Force kept to an aggressive meeting schedule in

         23  order to assess more than 2,100 City- owned wetland

         24  properties.  They were in contact with every

         25  community district in the City and convened two
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          2  public hearings or listening sessions, that you, the

          3  Chairman and representatives from Council Member

          4  McMahon and Oddo's offices attended.

          5                 In addition to those sessions, the

          6  Task Force organized two other separate gatherings

          7  of City agencies and other governmental and non-

          8  governmental stakeholders.  Parks also hosted a Task

          9  Force web site, where information was readily

         10  available and comments on the subject were

         11  submitted.  The Task Force has reached the end of a

         12  three- month extension requested and approved by the

         13  Council and Mayor during August 2006, in order to

         14  complete its information gathering and review

         15  process.  Despite continuing efforts, however, the

         16  review of a high- priority wetland site on Staten

         17  Island, Arlington Marsh, remains incomplete and has

         18  not been finalized.

         19                 Council representatives, including

         20  Chairman Gennaro and the Mayor's Office have met

         21  with the primary stakeholders in this high- priority

         22  area and with representatives of the Task Force, in

         23  order to clarify the outstanding issues.  Additional

         24  assessment work has been called for, which will

         25  require additional time.
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          2                 Given these circumstances, we are in

          3  agreement with the Council and support 505 to extend

          4  the Task Force.  This action will allow the Task

          5  Force, as well as the Arlington Marsh stakeholders,

          6  to review the additional studies and analyses to be

          7  carried out, with the intent of finalizing the Task

          8  Force's recommendation and completing its report to

          9  the Speaker and the Mayor.

         10                 The extension being voted upon would

         11  allow the Task Force to submit its report by

         12  September 31, 2007 and remain available as a group

         13  to respond to Council and Mayoral inquiries until

         14  December 31, 2007.

         15                 Thank you for the time and thank you

         16  for passing this bill.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         18  Michael.  We certainly appreciate you're being here

         19  today in the midst of everything you have to do.  I

         20  understand there's a very big meeting in the Parks

         21  Department today that's involving pretty much

         22  everyone and so we're grateful that you could be

         23  with us today and grateful for your support of Intro

         24  505 and please give my best to Bill Tye and people

         25  from Parks who have been working very hard on the
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          2  Wetlands Transfer and we certainly have high hopes

          3  for good things to happen out at Arlington Marsh

          4  Cove.  It's very important to us and glad that that

          5  situation is getting the attention that it certainly

          6  deserves.  We appreciate it.  Thank you, Michael.

          7                 And we're joined by Peter Vallone of

          8  Queens, Tom White of Queens, we already mentioned

          9  Kendall Stewart who's here, Council Member Koppell

         10  from the Bronx, of course we're --

         11                 For those members that might have

         12  come in at the tail end of the last witness, that

         13  was Michael Schnall of the Parks Department talking

         14  about the Parks Department's support for Intro 505

         15  which will extend the life of the Wetlands Transfer

         16  Task Force, which was created in 2005, Local Law 83

         17  of 2005, created a task force to inventory all of

         18  the City- owned wetlands to make an assessment of

         19  which of those wetlands should be transferred to the

         20  Parks Department for permanent protection.  The Task

         21  Force had one extension last year and we feel it's

         22  necessary to give them one more extension through

         23  the end of this year for them to complete their

         24  important work.

         25                 There is an issue of a very important

                                                            10

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  wetland in Staten Island called Arlington Marsh

          3  Cove.  It is arguably the crown jewel of all City

          4  wetlands and there is some disagreement between the

          5  representatives of the, that were put there on the

          6  Council, the Council's representatives, versus the

          7  representatives of the Mayor's.  So there is some

          8  disagreement on that.

          9                 We have elevated that situation to

         10  the highest levels, we've been talking about it with

         11  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff and we're hopeful that we can

         12  reach a conclusion where this important wetlands

         13  will be protected in perpetuity and to further this

         14  goal, we think it's necessary to keep the task force

         15  in existence because it's already technically, it

         16  ran out on the 17th of this month. And so that's

         17  what Intro 505 is all about.  That's what we'll be

         18  voting on now and so, I would, of course, recommend

         19  a yes vote.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         21  Gennaro.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Koppell.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: White.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

          7  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          8  abstentions, item has been adopted. Council Members

          9  please sign the Committee Report.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That you very

         11  much for your votes.  I will mention for the record

         12  that we're keep this vote open until the end of this

         13  hearing.  With that said, we'll move on to the

         14  matter of Intro 506 and I'll read my prepared

         15  statement and then we'll hear a series of witnesses

         16  on 506.

         17                 Good afternoon and welcome, I'm

         18  Councilman Jim Gennaro, Chair of the City Council's

         19  Committee on Environmental Protection.  Welcome to

         20  today's hearing on Intro 506, a Local Law to amend

         21  the Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         22  relation to the creation of a comprehensive Wetlands

         23  Protection Policy for New York City.

         24                 Notwithstanding the fact that

         25  wetlands are a viable resource, the City of New York
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          2  has lost over 85% of the wetlands that it had in

          3  1900.  I do believe the bill we're hearing today is

          4  critical to making certain that as the City plans

          5  for the future, we protect, enhance, and, where

          6  possible, expand those wetlands that remain to a

          7  degree that is commensurate with their value.

          8                 Consider this: One acre of wetlands

          9  can capture, store and filter one to one and a half

         10  million gallons of storm water.  That's an

         11  incredible resource.

         12                 The DEP Staten Island Blue Belt

         13  program capitalizes, literally, on this feature of

         14  wetlands.  By using wetlands and other natural

         15  areas, as opposed to the usual storm sewers and

         16  other engineered approaches to capture, store and

         17  filter storm water on Staten Island, the City has

         18  saved $50 million.  Indeed, the Blue Belt program is

         19  one of DEP's crown jewel programs and is greatly

         20  admired and praised by all.  On top of the $50

         21  million in savings that it provides, the Blue Belt

         22  creates and maintains open and green space for City

         23  residents and protects habitats for birds and

         24  wildlife.

         25                 In short, the Blue Belt program,
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          2  which I know DEP is deeply proud of, and should be,

          3  is itself a great argument for why we need the

          4  legislation being considered today and why we need

          5  to protect, enhance and as possible, create new

          6  wetlands.  I will quote the DEP, which has stated

          7  that the Staten Island Blue Belt program,

          8   "demonstrates how wetland preservation can be

          9  economically prudent and environmentally

         10  responsible."

         11                 I couldn't have said it better

         12  myself.  And the economic and environmental value

         13  over the City's remaining wetlands will only be

         14  amplified as New York City comes face to face with

         15  some of the predicted threats posed by Global

         16  Warming.  If the projections are accurate, rising

         17  seas and more frequent and vicious storms will flood

         18  and erode our shorelines, putting potentially

         19  billions of dollars worth of roads, rails, power

         20  distribution, water and sewer, real estate and other

         21  critical infrastructure at risk.

         22                 Wetlands can help mitigate those

         23  problems by capturing water and buffering shorelines

         24  and the continued loss of wetlands would, obviously,

         25  diminish this critical benefit.  I think it's safe
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          2  to say that the 85% of our wetlands already lost

          3  will be sorely missed if the projections about

          4  Global Warming come about. The City has relied

          5  primarily on the State and Federal governments to

          6  regulate our wetlands over time.  These projections

          7  have never been comprehensive, leaving fresh water

          8  wetlands that are less than 12.4 acres and that are

          9  not specifically mapped or of special importance non

         10  regulated.

         11                 Even the existing modest protections

         12  have recently been weakened further by a recent

         13  Supreme Court case and subsequent changes to the

         14  Federal Policy that removed protections for so

         15  called "isolated" wetlands.  As a consequence, there

         16  is now a greater need than ever for the City of New

         17  York to step in and protect whatever wetlands we

         18  have left.  Intro 506, of which I'm the author, will

         19  make sure the City takes a hard look at wetlands,

         20  with a goal of creating a comprehensive wetlands

         21  protection policy for New York City.

         22                 The purpose of this policy would be

         23  to preserve, protect, enhance, restore and, where

         24  possible, expand our remaining wetlands and to

         25  standardize the City's approach to the management of
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          2  these valuable natural resources.  Among other

          3  things, this legislation would require the DEP, in

          4  conjunction with the Parks Department to consider

          5  the current condition and level of protection of

          6  wetlands and their value based on the ecological,

          7  economic and other services they provide and look

          8  into measures, including incentives, regulations,

          9  coordination with other agencies and public

         10  education that would establish a comprehensive

         11  wetlands protection policy for the City.

         12                 The proposed bill would set out a

         13  clear schedule and procedure for how the City will

         14  generate and publish the wetland policy and related

         15  information, the details of which and other elements

         16  of the bill that I will not go into here in the

         17  interest of time.  I do, however, want to note that

         18  the bill would establish an advisory committee to

         19  assist the City in developing an effective wetlands

         20  protection policy.  Intro 506, including the

         21  advisory committee, is modeled after Local Law 71,

         22  the bill that I wrote to create a comprehensive

         23  watershed protection plan for Jamaica Bay.

         24                 On several occasions, including this

         25  Committee's most recent hearing, DEP Commissioner
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          2  Emily Lloyd has been quite complimentary of this

          3  law, and the promise it holds for both improving and

          4  safeguarding Jamaica Bay.  I very much appreciate

          5  the Commissioner's comments.  I believe Local Law 71

          6  as well as the legislation we'll hear today, will do

          7  great things for both the environment and the people

          8  of New York City for years to come.  On that topic

          9  and before I close, I would like to note how the

         10  creation of a comprehensive wetlands policy

         11  compliments the PlanNYC, the current planning being

         12  done toward creating a sustainable New York City by

         13  2030.  The PlanNYC has acknowledged that over the

         14  next 25 years, as the City adds another 1 million

         15  residents, our environment will be at risk.  It'll

         16  also recognize that natural areas like wetlands that

         17  protect our water systems and provide a host of

         18  other benefits have plunged by 85% since 1900, which

         19  I stated earlier.

         20                 In fact, the Plan has established a

         21  goal of improving the water quality of our harbor

         22  and its tributary by preserving natural areas such

         23  as wetlands.  I applaud the Bloomberg Administration

         24  for incorporating the goal of preserving wetlands

         25  and other natural areas into the City's plan on
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          2  sustainability. This planning process, I believe,

          3  presents a unique opportunity to think thoughtfully,

          4  clearly and, most importantly, proactively about

          5  protecting our remaining wetlands and their value to

          6  the City and it's future and I could see no better

          7  way to focus such thoughtful, clear and proactive

          8  thinking than through the creation of the

          9  Comprehensive Citywide Wetlands Protection Policy

         10  proposed by Intro 506.

         11                 So, without further ado, we'd like to

         12  call our first panel.  Deputy Commissioner Angela

         13  Licata of the DEP and I see she is joined by a great

         14  friend of this Committee, Mark Lanaghan.  I'll take

         15  this opportunity to thank the staff of the

         16  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, Dan Avery, my own Chief

         17  of Staff, Peter Washburn, for all of their efforts

         18  to bring this to this hearing today and draft the

         19  bill and also grateful for the opportunity to have

         20  you, Angela and Mark, to have you come here and give

         21  your views on the bill. Thank you for being here.

         22  Donna will give the oath and swear you in, after

         23  which you can state your names for the record and

         24  proceed with your testimony.

         25                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please
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          2  raise your right hands.  In the testimony you are

          3  about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the

          4  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: I do.

          6                 MR. LANAGHAN: I do.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Good

         10  afternoon, Chairman Gennaro, Committee Members.

         11  Once again, my name, Angela Licata, I'm a Deputy

         12  Commissioner with New York City's Department of

         13  Environmental Protection.  On behalf of Commissioner

         14  Emily Lloyd, thank you for this opportunity to speak

         15  on Introduction 506 and the topic of wetlands,

         16  generally.  These will be preliminary comments

         17  regarding this Introduction.  The preserving,

         18  restoring and expanding wetlands are all worthy

         19  goals for a variety of reasons. Depending on the

         20  specific parcels, wetlands can provide value in a

         21  number of different ways: Water quality protection;

         22  preserving open spaces; stormwater control; and,

         23  supporting important habitats for birds or fish,

         24  just to name a few.  As DEP knows from its Bluebelt

         25  work, some wetlands have a hydrological function
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          2  that makes them extremely valuable and cost-

          3  effective substitutes for conventional storm sewers.

          4

          5                 DEP spends a substantial amount of

          6  time on reviewing issues related to wetlands in and

          7  around Jamaica Bay, the wetlands within Staten

          8  Island, other wetlands in New York City as well as

          9  wetlands within the Upstate Watershed.  Based on

         10  this experience, and our work with colleagues at

         11  other City agencies that could not be here today, I

         12  have these preliminary comments to offer you.

         13                 Intro 506 is an extremely ambitious

         14  proposal, both in scope and schedule.  In terms of

         15  scope, the policy required under Intro 506 would

         16  apply to any site that meets the wetlands criteria

         17  specified in a 1989 federal policy.  (As an aside,

         18  that 1989 policy was considered less clear than an

         19  earlier 1987 policy so the 1989 policy was

         20  eventually withdrawn.  It is our understanding that

         21  wetlands specialists now consider the 1987 policy to

         22  be the one in effect.)  Because the policy does not

         23  discriminate by size, as do the relevant State

         24  regulations, the number of sites to which this

         25  policy would apply, meaning Intro 506, is certainly
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          2  in the hundreds, in addition to the 2,100 acres of

          3  wetland that we heard about earlier.  Intro 506

          4  would require a daunting amount of information to

          5  establish these definitions on these sites.  The

          6  field work alone required to identify and assemble

          7  this information would take well over a year,

          8  possibly several years.  Parcels larger than 12.4

          9  acres already regulated by DEC are available to us,

         10  obviously that database is more complete. The vast

         11  bulk of the work required by Intro 506 is, seems to

         12  be related to the smaller parcels that have not been

         13  analyzed or, in some cases, even mapped.

         14                 The ambitious scope of Intro 506 is

         15  matched by an ambitious schedule.  Practically

         16  speaking, the legislation would require a

         17  preliminary wetlands protection policy for the

         18  entire City before September 2007 because at that

         19  point an advisory committee is charged with

         20  presenting recommendations.  By January 15, 2008, a

         21  more complete draft wetlands protection policy would

         22  be submitted to the Mayor and the City Council.

         23  Further comments on that draft are due from the

         24  advisory committee in April 2008, and a final policy

         25  in July 2008.
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          2                 Just as a practical matter, based on

          3  the available resources, it is extremely unlikely

          4  that DEP, working with our colleagues at the

          5  Department of Parks and Recreation and other

          6  relevant agencies and offices, could complete this

          7  work in that time frame.  Even if we were able to

          8  obtain qualified consultant support to supplement

          9  the in- house staff, it would take six to nine

         10  months to solicit proposals, review them and then

         11  complete all of the procurement procedures required

         12  to  --  prior to awarding this contract.

         13                 Obtaining consultant services via

         14  change order to an existing contract is sometimes

         15  possible, but that process can also take several

         16  months.  In any case, DEP staff has to manage the

         17  consultant and that task would likely fall to myself

         18  and my staff. As you may appreciate, my time and the

         19  time of my staff most relevant to this task is

         20  consumed with the Jamaica Bay report, part of which

         21  addresses the role of wetlands and the health of

         22  Jamaica bay.  As the other bill on today's agenda

         23  makes clear, Parks is also occupied with wetlands

         24  through their work on the task force. In both cases,

         25  the relevant DEP and Park staff would be unable to
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          2  devote enough time to a Citywide wetlands policy, to

          3  complete the mandates in Intro 506 within the

          4  specified time frames.

          5                 As a policy matter, Intro 506 assigns

          6  to DEP, in consultation with Parks, the role of

          7  creating and to some extent, implementing a Citywide

          8  wetlands policy.  DEP does have knowledge and

          9  experience that bears upon wetlands management and

         10  it would certainly want to be involved in the

         11  creation of any City policy created for wetlands,

         12  however, because creation of a wetlands policy

         13  raises land- use and environmental issues that cross

         14  many different agency boundaries, there are numerous

         15  options for how to house a Citywide wetland policy.

         16  DEP is only one option and possibly not the best

         17  one.

         18                 I also have a few comments on one of

         19  the goals of the legislation.  The first paragraph

         20  of the legislation, the proposed Section 24- 508,

         21  identifies the goals of the policy that the rest of

         22  the legislation specifies the agencies to prepare.

         23  These goals are to conserve, protect, enhance,

         24  restore and expand the wetlands of New York City"

         25  and to "standardize the City's approach to wetlands
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          2  management."  I have no substantive comment on the

          3  second of these two goals.  Generally speaking,

          4  having a standardized policy that applies across the

          5  City could create consistency and clarity.  The

          6  difficult questions arise from consideration of what

          7  that "standardized policy" might be, which is the

          8  issue raised by the first goal.

          9                 The first goal is somewhat unbalanced

         10  in that omits explicit mention of the other

         11  priorities against which wetlands preservation or

         12  expansion must compete: Housing, roads, schools,

         13  recreation, economic development activities.  The

         14  language creating this goal also omits mention of

         15  the fact that wetlands in New York City vary greatly

         16  in size and features.  Without mentioning these

         17  other considerations in the sentence establishing

         18  the goals of the legislation, Intro 506 seems to

         19  imply that wetlands preservation and enhancement is

         20  the only permissible goal of a Citywide wetlands

         21  policy.

         22                 In reality, the parcels in New York

         23  City that meet the Federal wetlands criteria are of

         24  widely divergent quality that may make them at very

         25  low priority for preservation or replacement. In the
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          2  Blue Belt system, wetlands are valuable because they

          3  are located along water courses in low lying areas

          4  and can entirely replace the need of conventional

          5  storm sewers.  Other wetlands of a certain size may

          6  be able to cleanse enough storm water to make a

          7  quantifiable difference in localized water quality.

          8  But where wetlands are degraded or isolated or very

          9  small, they may not be important to preserve or

         10  replace, because their ecological function is

         11  impaired or because they are simply not large

         12  enough.

         13                 Choices that need to be made with

         14  respect to wetland preservation or replacement in

         15  New York City are essentially land use choices.  The

         16  goals of wetlands preservation and replacement is a

         17  valuable one but it is not necessarily superior to

         18  many other City land use goals, such as housing,

         19  economic development, transportation, or creating

         20  sites for active recreation.  Without acknowledging

         21  the sometimes conflicting land use objectives in the

         22  language that creates the goals of the legislation,

         23  Intro 506 may be directing DEP and its colleagues to

         24  create a land use policy whose goal is wetlands

         25  preservation and enhancement.  It may be more useful
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          2  to consider a Citywide wetlands policy that is

          3  dedicated to identifying the most appropriate land

          4  use for parcels that can or do meet a given set of

          5  wetlands criteria.

          6                 Finally, I am advised by corporation

          7  counsel that Intro 506 contains provisions that

          8  establish a wetlands protection policy advisory

          9  committee consisting of Council and Mayoral

         10  appointees who serve for a term.  The Committee is

         11  authorized to make recommendations to the

         12  Commissioners of Environmental Protection and Parks

         13  regarding wetlands protection policy.  The

         14  Commissioners are required either to include the

         15  recommendations in the final policy document or to

         16  explain why the recommendations were not included.

         17  These provisions to insert Council Appointees into a

         18  Mayoral policy making process and thus constitute a

         19  curtailment of the Mayor's powers.  They cannot be

         20  enacted without a referendum.

         21                 On behalf of Commissioner Lloyd,

         22  thank you again for this opportunity to present my

         23  testimony.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.  I

         25  want to recognize Council Member Dominic Recchia who

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  has joined us today.  I just wanted to make sure

          3  before I called you to vote that you're aware of

          4  Intro 505 and you've been apprised of this vote and

          5  without further ado I call upon you to vote on Intro

          6  505, which is an extender to the Wetlands Transfer

          7  Task Force, a bill we did in 2005, we did an

          8  extension in 2006 because the task force needed more

          9  time, Intro 505 would provide for this Task Force to

         10  stay in effect until the end of the year for it to

         11  be able to continue its important work.  The Chair

         12  recommends a yes vote and so.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair, I'm sorry that I was late.  I was at

         15  another hearing.  I would just, before I cast my

         16  vote on Intro 505, I would just like to add my name

         17  as a co- sponsor of the bill.  After reading this

         18  thoroughly and you advice, I would vote Aye.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20  Thank you, Councilman Recchia.  Okay.  I just want,

         21  maybe start at the end and work backwards.

         22  Regarding the last paragraphs about the curtailment

         23  of the Mayor's powers.  I know that this section of

         24  your testimony was not drafted by you, it was

         25  drafted by Corporation Counsel or informed by
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          2  Corporation Counsel, but, I find it strange because

          3  we already have two task forces in existence right

          4  now.  Local Law 71, which you're so much a part of,

          5  so I'm not getting why they are putting this in here

          6  and so, would you or Mark care to opine on this?

          7                 MR. LANAGHAN: It would be difficult

          8  for either of us, Mr. Chairman, to be responsive to

          9  that question.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sorry, state

         11  your name for the record.

         12                 MR. LANAGHAN:  Mark Lanaghan, New

         13  York City Department of Environmental Protection.

         14  Neither of us could be responsive to your question

         15  but we can take it back to Corporate Counsel.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

         17  say for the record, this is silly in the extreme, I

         18  would think.  We already have this paradigm up and

         19  running twice already.  Where were they for the

         20  Wetlands Transfer thing, where were they for Jamaica

         21  Bay? I think we have to get Corp Counsel like into

         22  the Wetlands or whatever.  Maybe they should get

         23  their feet wet a little bit. Anyway.

         24                 The paragraph before that, where the

         25  last part of the paragraph before that where you
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          2  indicate this is your statement that it may be more

          3  useful to consider a Citywide wetlands policy that

          4  is dedicated to identify the most appropriate land

          5  use for parcel that can meet a set of wetlands

          6  criteria.  I mean, the way our bill is drafted

          7  wouldn't preclude you from doing that and it seems

          8  that there's a theme throughout your testimony that

          9  suggests that our bill is very prescriptive of what

         10  it is the wetlands policy would be.  I don't read it

         11  that way, I don't think it was drafted that way, so,

         12  I think the thrust of the bill is that we should

         13  just have a wetlands policy.  Like, it should exist.

         14    We're not giving the details on what that should

         15  be, so, with that in mind, do you think that the

         16  last paragraph of your statement is still relevant

         17  because we're not really being prescriptive on what

         18  the wetlands policy should be?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Well, I

         20  mean, I'm very encouraged to hear you acknowledge

         21  that and certainly I think that what is relevant is

         22  that we are, frankly, concerned about competing land

         23  uses and our ability to be able to judge individual

         24  wetlands sites and then make that comparable call on

         25  what is the best use of a particular property.  That
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          2  takes a lot of engineering behind various agencies

          3  within the City, so there will have to be a lot of

          4  engaging people and thinking about competing land

          5  uses.  We just want to see that it's not a simple

          6  matter of, "what does this wetland do and let's

          7  place it on a list."

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think we have

          9  a little better understanding of each other now on

         10  that point where we don't want to be that

         11  prescriptive but we should have something, it should

         12  make sense, it should be the best wetlands policy

         13  that's reasonable and practical and implementable

         14  and standardizable and all of those things.  Nor do

         15  I think does the bill call for all these hundreds

         16  and hundreds of wetlands to be personally surveyed

         17  and all their features identified.  I think what's

         18  important is to figure out what the policy, or like

         19  the paradigm ought to be, and then you apply it to

         20  the wetlands when, at the appropriate time, to see

         21  what category it would be in, whether it's big

         22  enough, whether it's sensitive enough, whether it,

         23  you know, meets the various criteria which we could,

         24  which we could set out in a policy.  So, I'm not

         25  agreeing with all the site surveys and everything
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          2  else that you listing as one of your obstacles for

          3  implementing or even creating this policy.  Would

          4  you like to respond to that?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Sure.

          6  With respect to wetlands that are less than 12.4

          7  acres in size, what you're left with when you put

          8  aside the DEC policy, which, really, hits at the

          9  size of a wetlands, 12.4 acres you're in, 12.4 acres

         10  or less, then you have to go through a more thorough

         11  examination.  That examination typically requires

         12  field work and often is referred to as a "three

         13  pronged test."  You must have a certain hydrophytic

         14  vegetation, you must have a certain soil type and

         15  evidence of ponding water at the site, so those are

         16  the three tests that typically you would have to

         17  have characteristics of on a site in order to

         18  constitute a true wetland.  One of my fears is not

         19  only would that be very time consuming to make that

         20  determination about those three characteristics but

         21  also that seasonality factors into this to a great

         22  deal.  Sometimes you have wet years and then other

         23  times you have dry years and that often skews the

         24  results.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, but, I'm
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          2  not following why it would be that this site by site

          3  survey of all the wetlands in the City would be a

          4  necessary prelude to doing this bill.  I'm just not

          5  understanding why that's the case, if that's what

          6  you're saying.  Notwithstanding the fact that the

          7  bill calls for a map where the wetlands are, it's

          8  our understanding that Parks maintains maps of where

          9  the wetlands are and I don't think it was our intent

         10  for each and every wetlands parcel in the City to be

         11  analyzed to the Nth degree in order to go forward on

         12  this bill but before you answer, I want to recognize

         13  Council Member DeBlasio, who has joined us from

         14  Brooklyn.  As a matter of fact, we're going to get

         15  him to vote on Intro 505 in a minute if I could just

         16  ask of Dan to make sure Council Member DeBlasio is

         17  conversant with everything before we call upon him

         18  to cast his vote.  What's that?  Okay.  In that

         19  case, Angela, with your indulgence, we're going to

         20  call on Bill to vote.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO: I vote

         22   "Aye."  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Bill.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

         25  seven.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Okay.  So

          3  you were just about to tell me something before I

          4  interrupted you.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: I think,

          6  frankly, there is some confusion with respect to the

          7  ambition of the bill.  The way we read it, you are

          8  asking for a preliminary or a listing, an

          9  understanding, a knowledge, of all of the wetlands

         10  sites within the City that are both 12.4 acres and

         11  larger and those that are smaller than 12.4 acres.

         12  The way things stand today, those wetlands that are

         13  12.4 or greater are mapped and there is a

         14  comprehensive list of those.  They were done by New

         15  York State DEC.  Those wetlands that are less than

         16  12.4 acres are, to my knowledge, are not mapped and

         17  do not exist in any one place.  So, information is

         18  not available about all wetlands in New York City.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Then that

         20  kind of begs the question of, as we endeavor to move

         21  forward to a sustainable City and as we have as one

         22  of the stated goals of the sustainability effort to

         23  maintain natural areas like our wetlands, wouldn't

         24  this be the appropriate time to figure out a way to

         25  catalogue the wetlands that exist, or whatever
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          2  wetlands we have left, and it's not like we have a

          3  lot, but, compared to what we used to have we don't

          4  have anywhere near what we used to have and I think

          5  what this bill is speaking to is that if ever there

          6  were a time to step up and make an inventory or some

          7  map of them and sort of plan for the future of these

          8  wetlands, this would be the time. When we're doing

          9  the sustainability thing, wouldn't that be something

         10  that you would agree with?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: I have

         12  two preliminary reactions.  One is that it would be

         13  very useful to have wetlands on one map or wetlands

         14  that have been comprehensively inventoried, but that

         15  said, I wouldn't agree that it would be useful or

         16  simple to do that in this timeframe nor do I believe

         17  that it would be necessarily useful to have an

         18  exhaustive list of wetlands given that there should

         19  probably be more attention paid to priority sites.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, this is

         21  why we have bill negotiations and whatever

         22  reasonable ideas people have but as I go through

         23  your testimony, the first part of your testimony

         24  indicates that it's like, too much work.  Then, it's

         25  too quick a timeframe, you don't have enough time.
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          2  And, you know, DEP may not be the place to house the

          3  wetlands policy.  It's almost nowhere in your

          4  testimony do you talk about whether this is a good

          5  idea or not. You know what I mean?  It's just all

          6  these other particulars.  You don't have the time,

          7  it shouldn't be here and all these other obstacles.

          8  I think just on a basic level, we could work through

          9  some of the impediments, we could try to be

         10  reasonable on some of that, but, what we're looking

         11  for is a recognition that this is an important

         12  endeavor or at whatever scope it should be and that

         13  it makes sense to do on some level and it's

         14  certainly commensurate with the effort toward

         15  sustainability.  This is what we're  -- this is what

         16  we hoped for.  You know.  We knew there were going

         17  to be obstacles.  We knew there was going to be this

         18  and it's not the time and yeah, that's always the

         19  case, that's always the case.  But this was our

         20  thinking and so, I'd like to ask you to respond to

         21  that.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Well,

         23  admittedly, I think we were very alarmed with the

         24  timeframe and the substantial amount of work that

         25  this was calling for, so, I think that that
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          2  certainly came through loud and clear.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The bill's not

          4  done.  We can talk about that.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: And there

          6  should be some further discussion in terms of the

          7  realistic scope of something like this and how we

          8  could prioritize what we see as either being the

          9  most important sites or sites that we should discuss

         10  and have land use based decisions about for, because

         11  there will be competing needs. So, I agree that

         12  there's probably more discussion that is needed

         13  about how to approach this.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, and let me

         15  just kind of speak to that for a minute.  It seems

         16  that with the characterization by you of your

         17  testimony as preliminary and you mention that and

         18  you've mentioned it several times, I'm not

         19  completely sure what you mean by preliminary.  Is

         20  that, it kind of gives one pause on how much, on how

         21  much thoughtful consideration went in the bill if

         22  the response is like, well, preliminary, like we're

         23  taking a look at it but we don't really know yet.

         24  We expect people to be thoroughly immersed in it and

         25  then able to speak on it with authority and not have
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          2  to couch their testimony with it's preliminary.

          3  This is a real hearing here.  So, what does

          4  preliminary mean?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Well,

          6  certainly I have immersed myself in the thinking

          7  about this since last week and I will state for the

          8  record that these comments are, in the best of my

          9  ability, those that I would provide on the record

         10  given a policy that is called out for here.  That,

         11  you know, there should be more thinking on this

         12  issue, I don't believe that I've done all my

         13  thinking about this, but, I think that I have

         14  provided you with my best thoughts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right, but it

         16  just seems that when you say preliminary that you're

         17  creating some distance between yourself and the

         18  testimony and that was really my concern and that

         19  using the word preliminary, it's just a way to

         20  provide distance between you and the statement or

         21  between the agency and the statement.

         22                 MR. LANAGHAN: Chairman, if I could

         23  add.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         25                 MR. LANAGHAN: There had been some

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  discussions with other colleagues that the

          3  environmental review, that possibly the goals of

          4  this legislation, or the goals of better Citywide

          5  policy for wetlands management, that we should

          6  either before doing a Local Law or at the same time

          7  as, look at the State Regulation that govern this

          8  and where there are changes that might serve the

          9  purposes better, or an additional tool in the

         10  wetlands arsenal  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That could be

         12  part of the testimony or an explanation or what you

         13  mean by preliminary or whatever, when I hear the

         14  preliminary it just, it gives me pause and that's

         15  fine and that can be part of what the testimony is,

         16  saying that we don't believe this is the right

         17  implement.  We don't believe this.  But, the

         18  testimony before us today is more replete with not

         19  whether we think it's a good idea or here are

         20  constructive ways in which we can make it better.

         21  It's like, it's too much time, we don't have a

         22  thing, we're not sure the DEP is really the place,

         23  it could be a City Planning thing, we don't think

         24  you used the right definition in terms of the 1989

         25  Federal Policy, in terms of the 1987 policy, which
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          2  is, actually, I guess pretty constructive to put in

          3  there, but, I'm fine with the things you're saying

          4  now but they should be part of testimony where it's

          5  like, "this is what we think about what ought to

          6  happen here," and not that well, maybe you could

          7  find some other agency to do this or it's very

          8  complicated or whatever.  I was just looking for,

          9  you know, something more comprehensive.  That's all.

         10    Council Member Koppell has a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, perhaps

         12  not so much a question, Mr. Chairman as an

         13  observation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon me,

         15  Oliver.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Since I was

         17  going to make an observation, I thought I should

         18  wait until you were finished talking.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  Please

         20  do.  It's just the staff was talking to me for a

         21  second.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's an

         23  observation, but I encourage the witnesses to

         24  comment on my observation.

         25                 First of all, as I read the specific
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          2  bill which we have here before us, it certainly

          3  doesn't state with any specificity precisely what

          4  the policy should be.  In fact, it suggests that you

          5  be in charge of the creation of the policy, because

          6  what it says is, "You shall prepare," this is the

          7  key provision, "prepare a comprehensive wetlands

          8  protection policy for the City of New York and the

          9  overall goals of that policy shall be conservation,

         10  protecting, enhancement and restoration and indeed

         11  expansion of the wetlands."

         12                 Now, if I think about the testimony

         13  that I heard, and I didn't hear all of it, about a

         14  sustainable New York program, part of that testimony

         15  seemed to suggest support of that objective in terms

         16  of preservation of the water quality and dealing

         17  with combined sewer outflow and so on.  This seems

         18  consistent with what you folks were saying last

         19  week.  So, in terms of the statement of the policy,

         20  it seems to me, it's consistent.

         21                 Now you say, well, you could read

         22  that as wetlands preservation is the only policy

         23  that this talks about and we can't, if we were to

         24  enact this, take into account other priorities,

         25  however, I would point out to you that on page two
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          2  of this bill, paragraph b says, "The Commissioner,

          3  in conjunction with the Commissioner of Parks and

          4  Recreation, shall assess the technical, legal,

          5  environmental and economic feasibility of including

          6  the following measures."  So the policies include

          7  measures, and one, by the way, and one of them, and

          8  the one that might concern you the most, because the

          9  others talk about requirements and enforcement, the

         10  one that might concern you the most is, "measures

         11  including appropriate requirements, enforcement

         12  mechanisms and incentives that provide for no net

         13  loss of wetlands."  But it doesn't say that you

         14  could have no net loss, it says you should analyze

         15  the economic as well as environmental, legal and

         16  technical ability for that to be a measure.  So you

         17  could come back and say, "well, we can't guarantee

         18  no net loss," if in fact that's your conclusion.  I

         19  would hope that wouldn't be, but if it was, this

         20  bill allows that to be.

         21                 So I guess my bottom line is what I

         22  find troubling about your testimony is that it seems

         23  inconsistent with what you yourselves said you were

         24  going to be doing, or what the City's going to be

         25  doing in terms of sustainability.  I think this is
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          2  consistent.

          3                 Now, in terms of the timetable, maybe

          4  it's too ambitious a timetable.  That may well be

          5  and I leave that to the Chair to negotiate with you,

          6  but, in terms of the objectives, at least as far as

          7  I'm concerned, the objective of having, preserving

          8  and, indeed, enhancing wetlands, which, I've been

          9  involved in trying to help preserve for 35 years,

         10  believe it or not, because I was on the

         11  Environmental Committee in Albany starting in the

         12  early 70s and we passed the Statewide Wetlands

         13  Protection law in the 70s, as you may know, so I

         14  think wetlands protection is important and have for

         15  a long time.

         16                 You know, as I say, I think this bill

         17  is kind of right on.  The only issue I can see with

         18  the bill is perhaps it's too ambitious a timetable,

         19  Mr. Chairman, but we should get on with this.  I

         20  mean, it's sort of the same way as saying the goal

         21  of the City should be enhancing the quality of the

         22  air.  Nobody questions that, but everybody agrees

         23  that you can't do only enhancement of quality air

         24  because then we'd probably have to prohibit all cars

         25  and we're not going to do that.  Similarly here.
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          2  So, I would really think you should re- think your

          3  initial opposition and talk only as far as I'm

          4  concerned about timeframe.  What time will it take

          5  to put this kind of plan together?  You can comment

          6  if you'd like.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          8  Councilman Koppell and sure, I would invite your

          9  comments to  --  your reaction to the Councilman's

         10  observation.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: My first

         12  reaction would be that the language is entirely

         13  consistent with Local Law 71 and I recognize where

         14  we speak about looking at the technical, socials and

         15  economic feasibility of various actions but here it

         16  is slightly different in that it doesn't really

         17  mention that there would be varying proposals for

         18  one piece of property, whereas in Jamaica Bay, that

         19  may be the case but what we're looking for there are

         20  strategies, we're looking at strategies to protect

         21  the bay.  Not necessarily with what is the

         22  disposition of a particular piece of land, so it is

         23  slightly different, although the language is

         24  identical and I do see the tasks as being different.

         25                 With respect to Jamaica Bay, of the
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          2  2,100 wetlands that were mentioned earlier by Parks

          3  Department in their testimony, that exists in the

          4  City, about 1,000 of those 2,100 acres of wetlands

          5  do exist within Jamaica Bay and it's watershed so we

          6  are carefully, already, looking at that universe,

          7  you know, half of the wetlands left within the City.

          8    But once again, those are the wetlands that are

          9  already mapped and exist because they are 12.4 acres

         10  or greater.  So when you have this very broad

         11  definition as it's stated here in the bill of all

         12  wetlands, in my opinion, that brings into play

         13  potentially wetlands that would be regulated by the

         14  Army Corps of Engineers, and those, in order to

         15  determine those wetlands that meet that definition,

         16  there is a tremendous amount of fieldwork involved.

         17  And that's what's in fact mentioned by the bill, the

         18  timeframe that the bill establishes is not

         19  sufficient to be looking at wetlands under that

         20  definition.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But, I guess

         22  we're still looking to hear from you whether or not

         23  you think it's a good idea for the City to have a

         24  comprehensive wetlands policy and that's really what

         25  the bill's about.  It's kind of like a yes or no
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          2  question and if the answer is yes, which, I hope it

          3  would be in the era of PlaNYC, then we should be

          4  past the point of should we protect wetlands, then

          5  to be like how do we do this in the best way.  So

          6  you think it's a good idea for the City to have a

          7  wetlands policy?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Well, at

          9  this point, I feel as though I can speak on behalf

         10  of DEP more specifically and DEP does, in essence,

         11  have a wetlands policy with respect to the projects

         12  that it proposes and how it handles wetlands

         13  restoration and land restoration associated with  --

         14

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But that's like

         16  a limited, that's a different thing.  This is a

         17  comprehensive wetlands policy.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: What I

         19  would need to do is I would really need to consult

         20  further with my colleagues at other City agencies

         21  and get a better, more thorough understanding of how

         22  we could apply the type of wetlands policy that DEP

         23  has or how we could sort of think more

         24  comprehensively.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I mean, I would
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          2  think one-stop shopping for this would be Rit and

          3  his team, and the Office of Long Term Planning.  I

          4  mean, this is, they're the ones who are putting

          5  forward the Mayor's vision of sustainable City by,

          6  not just by 2030, of course there will be many

          7  milestones between now and then. I mean, and this

          8  is, as Councilman Koppell stated, so, it couldn't be

          9  more consistent with the thrust of the PlaNYC,

         10  PlaNYC, whatever you want to call it.  It's hard to

         11  envision anything more consistent with the Mayor's

         12  vision than what we're trying to articulate today.

         13  So what do you think?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: I think

         15  that a wetlands policy is not a bad thing to do.

         16  How it's done and what timeframe it's accomplished

         17  in is something that really requires further

         18  consideration.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's fine.  We

         20  know this Committee loves DEP.  Everybody knows

         21  that, you know.  We're very happy with everything

         22  that you're doing and at Jamaica Bay and we just

         23  believe that now is the time to reach for the brass

         24  ring and to set all these things in motion,

         25  crystalize them in law and give marching orders to
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          2  the people are going to have our jobs, you know, ten

          3  or twenty years from now, to say, Jim and Oliver and

          4  Angela and Mark did a good thing back then.  That's

          5  what this is about.  You have any final comments on

          6  that?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: No.  No

          8  further comments.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me see if I

         10  have any more questions.  There's a question here

         11  about neighboring municipalities.  Has DEP looked at

         12  wetlands policies of nearby localities, such as Long

         13  Island, Westchester, whatever?  Do they have

         14  wetlands policies that they  --  what's that?  I've

         15  been informed that they do have wetlands policies.

         16  So there are, I'm told, neighboring localities that

         17  have wetlands policies that could, perhaps, serve as

         18  a template, so I offer that to you.  Do you or

         19  anyone in DEP have any knowledge of these

         20  neighboring localities regarding wetlands?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: I,

         22  myself, do not.  I am aware of some other policies

         23  that are held by local jurisdictions within our

         24  watershed.  Those are sometimes more encompassing

         25  than DEC and other times they are completely
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          2  compatible and duplicative of DEC wetland

          3  regulations.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.  Okay.

          5  Well, I bring it to your attention and perhaps it

          6  could be some more food for thought as this issue

          7  gets further contemplation.  Another question.

          8  Please describe the process that takes place if

          9  someone's proposed actions may negatively impact a

         10  wetland in New York City and part A of that is does

         11  the City have a policy regarding wetlands

         12  mitigation?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Once

         14  again, I'm uncomfortable speaking on behalf of the

         15  City, generally.  I can speak about my involvement

         16  in certain cases and I can speak on behalf of DEP

         17  projects. Generally, if a project that's proposed by

         18  a private entity is going to disturb a wetland, it

         19  is reviewed by City staffers as a result of the City

         20  Environmental Quality Review Act and therefore, we

         21  would be looking at the project under other Land Use

         22  approvals, necessitating ULURP perhaps, or one of

         23  the other actions and then typically be the proposal

         24  to disturb wetlands gets encompassed within that

         25  CEQR analysis.  So there've been many, many
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          2  important sites that have been reviewed that way.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me follow

          4  this up by saying, please describe the City's

          5  waterfront revitalization program and how that

          6  speaks to wetlands.  The City's Waterfront

          7  Revitalization Program, is that a DEP program?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: No, that

          9  a Department of City Planning program and I'm really

         10  not experienced enough to handle that question.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  I have no

         12  further questions, so I want to thank you for being

         13  with us today.  Angela, Mark and certainly I would

         14  agree that we have more to go on this and I think

         15  Peter's going to follow up with you right now, I

         16  think. No.  I thought he was going to come get you

         17  right now.  Okay. Thank you very much.  I appreciate

         18  you being here.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, I've just

         22  been made aware of a situation.  I had a little

         23  unfortunate situation.  I'm told that at the

         24  entrance to City Hall the police were under the

         25  impression that this hearing had been cancelled and
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          2  were telling people who were coming to testify that

          3  the hearing was cancelled. That information,

          4  obviously, was wrong and so, and so we don't, it

          5  seems that we only have the true believers with us,

          6  you know, the people who are not willing to take no

          7  for an answer and were willing to second guess the

          8  police in order to enter the building and state

          9  their views.

         10                 So we have Rob Pirani of Regional

         11  Plan Associates. I'd like to call Rob.  We have

         12  Eugenia Flatow, the High Priestess of Wetlands

         13  Protection, who is with us here today.  Why don't we

         14  have Geenie and Rob and all the time that the other

         15  witnesses would have taken, you know, you can now

         16  have but let me just ask for a second.  Okay.  I was

         17  going to direct the Sergeant- at- Arms to ask the

         18  police why they were under that mistaken notice but

         19  we'll follow up after the hearing because people

         20  would have already been here by now.

         21                 So, pleasure to have you both here.

         22  Thank you for getting through the gauntlet and not

         23  taking no for an answer.  We certainly appreciate

         24  your determination to make sure that we were having

         25  a hearing or not.  Donna will give the oath and then
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          2  you can proceed with your testimony.  Just state

          3  your names for the record.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

          5  raise your right hands.  In the testimony you are

          6  about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the

          7  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. PIRANI: I do.

          9                 MS. FLATOW: I do.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're going to

         12  keep with the ladies first policy.  Rob wouldn't

         13  have it any other way.

         14                 MS. FLATOW: I want you to know that

         15  the email had about twelve or fifteen meetings today

         16  of the Council and a few of them were moved to

         17  tomorrow.  But yours wasn't.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 MS. FLATOW: It was the cop on the

         20  Broadway side that told me it was tomorrow.  I had

         21  gone back to my office which is only up on Sixth

         22  Avenue and I then tried to reach Peter and they told

         23  me they didn't know anything about it, they'd had

         24  three phone calls already.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who's they?
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          2                 MS. FLATOW: They called to find out

          3  was it postponed until tomorrow and were told no,

          4  it's on, it's on right now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MS. FLATOW: And so I went in this

          7  entrance this time, I forget what it's called.  And

          8  he didn't know anything about anything.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.  So, it

         10  was the Broadway entrance.

         11                 MS. FLATOW: It was the Broadway

         12  entrance.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That was the

         14  weak link there. Okay.  So the Park Place entrance,

         15  or whatever it is, the Brooklyn Bridge side of the

         16  building was okay.

         17                 MS. FLATOW: And assuming there'd be a

         18  huge crowd there, you'll be happy to know that I

         19  have a very short piece of testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, well,

         21  Geenie  --

         22                 MS. FLATOW: I expected the usual

         23  crowd behind me.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Whatever pearls

         25  you have for us, we're more than happy to  --
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          2                 MS. FLATOW: My name is Eugenia Flatow

          3  and I'm Chair of the New York City Soil and Water

          4  Conservation District and a member of the Wetlands

          5  Transfer Task Force.  I have four points regarding

          6  New York City Wetlands on the Comprehensive Wetlands

          7  Policy proposed under Intro number 506.  It was a

          8  wonderful 60 pages of marvelous set ups which I am

          9  very much in favor of, but I wanted to point out

         10  that the ecological functions of wetlands associated

         11  with storm water retention and filtration have been

         12  under- studied and under- utilized in the City.  The

         13  Local Law should expand measures to utilize

         14  wetlands, to abate storm water runoff, which

         15  contaminates receiving waters and prevents primary

         16  contact recreational activities.

         17                 2.  There should be a no loss, rather

         18  than a no net loss wetlands policy adopted by the

         19  City.  Two Governors supported a no loss wetland

         20  plan as part of the New York/Mew Jersey

         21  Comprehensive Conservation Management Plan.  Whereas

         22  Jersey went with a no net loss, New York State with

         23  a no loss of wetlands.

         24                 3.  There are hundreds of small

         25  wetlands within the City.  Each wetland, regardless
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          2  of size, should be evaluated for protection.  I

          3  mention that because there are a couple of hundred

          4  that our Committee did not get to and we think they

          5  should be protected until we have a chance to

          6  examine each of them because they might be important

          7  for protecting wetlands.

          8                 4.  The City should adopt the New

          9  York State regulation that establishes a wetland

         10  buffer of 300 feet.  The expansion would allow for

         11  increased water quality protection, habitat, and

         12  offer wetland migration opportunities in the light

         13  of the sea level rise.

         14                 That's it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         16  Geenie, I appreciate you being here.  Rob.

         17                 MR. PIRANI: Thank you, Chairman

         18  Gennaro, my name is Rob Pirani, I'm the Director of

         19  Environmental Programs with Regional Plan

         20  Association.  Let me start out by again thanking you

         21  and your Committee for your continued leadership on

         22  this issue.  As Co- chair of the Wetlands Transfer

         23  Task Force, we're also appreciative of getting

         24  another reprieve, I guess, another few months and,

         25  obviously, your continued leadership in pushing
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          2  Arlington Marsh and the rest of that agenda forward,

          3  so, thank you again very much for that.

          4                 I'm here to testify in favor of Intro

          5  506.  It's a very important and timely initiative.

          6  As was mentioned, New York City once had hundreds of

          7  square miles of both coastal and freshwater

          8  wetlands.  There's very few of those wetlands that

          9  remain and those that are still present are of vital

         10  importance for all the reasons that have been stated

         11  earlier.

         12                 Much of my testimony really stems

         13  from the work that Geenie and I have done as part of

         14  the wetlands task force and really grows out of our

         15  Committee's work in looking at the finite number of

         16  City- owned wetland properties and coming to grips

         17  with, I think it was the DEP Representative alluded

         18  to, the challenge of assessing them, of figuring out

         19  which ones are important and really deciding where

         20  they should remain.  In particular, as you

         21  mentioned, there's about 2,000 City- owned wetlands.

         22    The Committee looked at about 1,000 of those that

         23  weren't in Parks property. While we're going to be

         24  making recommendations for several hundred to be

         25  transferred to either the Parks Department or to the
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          2  DEP Blue Belt program, there were many, hundreds

          3  more, that we weren't able to get to in terms of

          4  looking and doing the kind of field investigation

          5  that Angela and her colleagues alluded to.

          6                 But, a policy of benign neglect for

          7  those wetlands is really not what's appropriate.

          8  There should be some forward thinking on how best to

          9  treat those wetlands and, in particular, not just

         10  how to treat them but also what is their future,

         11  whether they should be, if there are alternative

         12  management strategies, how much that would cost, who

         13  should be responsible, as opposed to having them

         14  just sit as surplus properties.

         15                 The second, sort of, rationale behind

         16  and the reason we're supportive of this policy, of

         17  Intro 506 is the number of privately owned wetlands

         18  in the City.  Our sort of early estimation is that

         19  there are about 1,000 acres of privately owned

         20  wetlands, the vast majority of which are on Staten

         21  Island.  Those thousand acres are fragmented into

         22  4,000 individual tax parcels.  Clearly, I don't have

         23  the exact percentage, but, most of them, and

         24  certainly the vast majority of them are under 12.4

         25  acres and would not be subject to DEC review, nor
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          2  would they be necessarily be mapped at the level the

          3  DEC maps have mapped them.  I would note that the

          4  National Wetlands Inventory conducted by the US Fish

          5  and Wildlife Service did map wetlands throughout the

          6  City.  And that's really the basis for those acreage

          7  numbers I've just given, those maps are done, aerial

          8  photos, there not the level of a field delineation

          9  that DEP talked about but there's certainly a

         10  preliminary indication of the presence of wetlands

         11  through wetland vegetation.

         12                 So, dealing with both, again, the

         13  sort of smaller City- owned parcels that the task

         14  force was not able to come to grips with given our

         15  scope and time as well as the number of private

         16  owned wetlands.  We think 506 in the development in

         17  particular of a comprehensive wetlands policy is the

         18  right step for the City at this time.  Right now the

         19  City has two bodies of policy.  One is the local

         20  Waterfront Revitalization program that's

         21  administered by the Department of City Planning,

         22  that program has identified what are known as, and

         23  I'm going to get this wrong actually, I didn't write

         24  it in my testimony, but it's important wetland

         25  complexes, and that's not the official term but it's

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  something very close to that.  Those are limited in

          3  scope, there's specific geographic areas that are

          4  exclusively tidal in nature, so what that program

          5  does, in essence, the City has to adopt actions that

          6  are consistent with the Waterfront Revitalization

          7  program.  So where those areas have been identified

          8  as being of significance, the City should not adopt

          9  a policy of filling or otherwise take action adverse

         10  to those complexes.

         11                 As was mentioned earlier, the other

         12  provision of current policy is the City's

         13  Environmental Quality Review Act which essentially

         14  points to both Federally and State delineated

         15  wetlands as being of importance and when projects

         16  have to go through CEQR and/or ULURP, those areas

         17  must be delineated and are dealt with through the

         18  CEQR policies which seek to avoid filling or

         19  destruction of the wetlands.

         20                 Of course, not all wetlands and not

         21  all actions would fall under either of those

         22  scenarios and there's a certain number that are left

         23  orphaned, if you will.  So, I think the proposed

         24  legislation, I think rightly identifies a series of

         25  places where additional guidance would be helpful.
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          2  Again, certain types of the public and private

          3  wetlands, especially small freshwater wetlands,

          4  policy guidance and funding for managing smaller

          5  City owned wetlands and their upland buffers,

          6  wetlands within mapped City streets that aren't

          7  currently used by the Department of Transportation,

          8  underwater properties which are of increasing

          9  importance for conservation purposes, whether it's

         10  oyster or eel grass restoration, other purposes.

         11  The proposed legislation would also help coordinate

         12  a City policy with Federal and State regulations and

         13  in particular, thinking about ways that mitigation

         14  of any wetland loss that may be engendered by

         15  developer proposals could be dealt with on a more

         16  comprehensive or regional basis, certainly some

         17  things as easy as developing a comprehensive list of

         18  wetland mitigation possibilities.

         19                 There are a few recommendations that

         20  we would like to pass along to you in terms of the

         21  bill as it moves forward. First of all, I guess we

         22  would share in some ways DEP's suggestion that there

         23  are other City agencies that need to be involved in

         24  this policy and, in particular, the Department of

         25  City Planning, not just their Coastal Management
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          2  program but also the other aspects of City Planning

          3  that deal with regulation of privately owned

          4  property, the Mayor's Office of Environmental

          5  Coordination because of their role with setting

          6  policies through their CEQR of the technical manual,

          7  the CEQR technical manual, would be two likely

          8  agencies to be involved at some level.

          9                 A second recommendation is that we

         10  would think that the process of creating a policy

         11  should also include an identification of an

         12  appropriate definition of wetlands.  Many wetlands

         13  in New York City are on disturbed soils, many have

         14  many opportunities for restoration of wetlands, are

         15  in areas that have been historically filled and we

         16  want to consider all ranges of, we want to include

         17  disturbed soils in particular, but also take note of

         18  many of the State and Federal definitions are more

         19  suitable for areas that haven't been disturbed

         20  historically.

         21                 Finally, I'd like to just reinforce

         22  the point that the policy should specifically

         23  address the ways and means of managing smaller

         24  wetland properties in the City.  Many of these

         25  smaller, isolated properties are difficult and
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          2  costly to manage. In our work on the wetlands task

          3  force, we've discussed several means of, ways and

          4  means, of addressing them.  Obviously, given

          5  adequate funding, the Department of Parks Natural

          6  Resources Group and the Blue Belt program are

          7  excellent stewards of property, have a lot of

          8  technical expertise and they could be charged

          9  directly or indirectly with the management of these

         10  properties.  Circuit Rider programs that would

         11  enable staff from these agencies to go out and visit

         12  these smaller sites might be one means, encouraging

         13  community stewardship of properties through sort of

         14  a partnership of Parks approach might be another

         15  means and something that the task force looked at in

         16  particular around Jamaica Bay.

         17                 In closing, let me note and at the

         18  risk of repeating something you said, that the

         19  process proposed by the bill really fits very well

         20  with the Administration's current focus on

         21  sustainability and the PlaNYC and for that reason

         22  it's very timely and we would hope that this aspect,

         23  the recommendation of creating a process is

         24  something while certainly as the Co-Chair of a task

         25  force that's struggling right now to meet our
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          2  timeframe, I'm very sympathetic to DEP's comments,

          3  certainly it could be something that could be

          4  initiated under the current administration.

          5                 Thank you very much for your interest

          6  and opportunity and the opportunity to testify and

          7  I'd be happy to answer any questions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          9  Thank you, Rob. Thank you, Geenie.  Council Member

         10  Koppell has a question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The last

         12  comment about time, and since you are the Chair of

         13  task force looking into the wetlands now, what do

         14  you think a realistic timeframe would be?  Assuming

         15  the one in the bill is unrealistic.  If you think

         16  it's realistic, but your last comment suggested you

         17  thought it was unrealistic.

         18                 MR. PIRANI: Well, I think it would be

         19  challenging. I think in some ways it depends on the

         20  scope of the task force.  If the, of the scope of

         21  Intro 506.  If the intent of 506 is really to go out

         22  and identify and delineate every wetland that

         23  remains in the City, then certainly it's

         24  unrealistic.  That would be something that, as

         25  suggested earlier, would have to take place over

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  several seasons in order to make sure that you

          3  captured wetlands at various stages of wetland, of

          4  plant growth.

          5                 In terms of the intent of the bill,

          6  though, and this was, frankly, my understanding was

          7  really to identify a policy, not so much to identify

          8  every acre of wetland that was out there but more to

          9  at least begin the process of identifying a policy

         10  towards those acres, then certainly, the process,

         11  again, I think it's within the ballpark of being

         12  realistic.  I'd have to look at the dates again to

         13  be honest with you, to come up with a definitive

         14  answer on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Maybe the

         16  bill could make it clear that the identification

         17  process doesn't need to be all finished by the

         18  deadline set forth.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Certainly, I

         20  think that priority number one is getting a policy

         21  that would work for the wetlands and secondary to

         22  that, would be detailed delineation and all that.

         23  But I actually want to follow up with Rob on that.

         24  Would you believe, Rob, that it would be possible to

         25  develop a policy for City wetlands without doing a
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          2  Citywide site delineation?

          3                 MR. PIRANI: Yes.  I certainly think

          4  that could be possible.  I think you'd want to have

          5  a sense of the magnitude and the scope, but, you

          6  could do that without delineating and knowing every

          7  property that's involved and every property owner

          8  involved.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So it would be a

         10  process of putting forward the policy and then as

         11  each parcel came up for possible development or

         12  whatever, it would, the policy would apply to that

         13  particular parcel, whatever it was, wherever it fit

         14  in the whole scheme.

         15                 MR. PIRANI: Right.  And I think it's

         16  important to distinguish and I'm not sure what the

         17  right answer is, but certainly when other

         18  municipalities adopt a comprehensive wetlands laws

         19  that have regulatory provisions, generally, those

         20  are accompanied with a requirement for a wetlands

         21  map and those maps do take time to prepare.  There

         22  are municipalities that adopt the law and then give

         23  their local planning consultant or department time

         24  to create the map and require creation of the map at

         25  a certain time and then there are ones that do the
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          2  map and then use that because that's so important to

          3  some of the individual property owners, use that as

          4  part of a negotiation towards getting the law past

          5  in it's draft form.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.  So  --

          7                 MR. PIRANI: I would think for the

          8  City it would be more, again, I think part of the

          9  reason to do the investigation of what the policy

         10  would be would be to assess whether a specific City

         11  regulation apply to the wetlands would be required,

         12  recommended and certainly if that was recommended

         13  and regulations were proposed, you may want to have

         14  a map, a specific map adopted as part of that but, I

         15  wouldn't know whether that was really the best

         16  course of action and whether that was really whether

         17  at this time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Speaking of

         19  other jurisdictions and when they put forward these

         20  kinds of wetlands policies that are accompanied by a

         21  map or the promise of the development of a map that

         22  comes later, are these maps like fully delineated or

         23  is it just indicate like where the wetlands are or

         24  are they categorized as to importance and all

         25  features and other things or just gives a sense of

                                                            65

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  where the wetlands are and the policy which would

          3  say various types of wetlands.  I'm not being clear.

          4                 MR. PIRANI: No, you are.  I think it

          5  varies by municipality and legally, having a very

          6  specific map that's been field verified is both

          7  helpful in some ways in providing a very clear

          8  definition obviously, it's also open to a greater

          9  challenge, so some municipalities would opt for

         10  going for a more general map indicating more general

         11  areas of concern and then the specific field

         12  delineation that was discussed later.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: As they come up

         14  for development or whatever.

         15                 MR. PIRANI: Exactly.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And so, the onus

         17  would be on the developer to do the delineation and

         18  to  --  that's how that would work.  Regarding local

         19  jurisdictions that have comprehensive wetlands

         20  policies, do you know what those, I've been told by

         21  Committee that Westchester has one, Long Island has

         22  one.  Is that your understanding?

         23                 MR. PIRANI: Yes, that's my

         24  understanding, too, that Westchester County does

         25  have one, a number of municipalities within the
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          2  County also have specific wetlands ordinances that

          3  apply within their community.  Certainly, within the

          4  New York City Watershed, a number of towns within

          5  the watershed have a wetlands policy.  I should add

          6  that the City benefits from.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          8                 MS. FLATOW: Could I just make a

          9  statement?  DEC has agreed where there are other

         10  studies, where what wetlands exist and if they're

         11  particularly less than 12.4 and they never could go

         12  out and make the study that they felt was important

         13  either in the watershed or particularly in Staten

         14  Island where the majority of them exist because they

         15  didn't have enough staff.  The new Commissioner has

         16  tried to get the Governor to pass a budget that will

         17  include a huge new staff for DEC and I think that

         18  not only this, but for instance, I think half the

         19  CSOs are in Manhattan, which doesn't have a lot of

         20  wetlands left but they pump it in their subbasement

         21  and then as soon as the rain is over they put it

         22  back into the sewer, so they might as well be part

         23  of the big ones that are doing a lot of the

         24  dictating.  The Deputy Mayor announced that their

         25  program was to have 90% of the waterfront for
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          2  recreation  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Deputy Mayor

          4  Doctoroff, correct?

          5                 MS. FLATOW: If we don't also look at

          6  hydric soils and what goes into the water from storm

          7  water, it's not going to be contact recreation,

          8  that's for very sure.  So I think what we started

          9  here is very, very important and I think that we

         10  should do what we can to broaden it as much as

         11  possible toward a non-CSO discharge set-up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That was the

         13  focus of our other hearing.  Well put, Geenie.  Well

         14  put.  Thank you.  Thanks for carrying the torch for

         15  all of those who were denied access.  Their voices

         16  were heard.

         17                 MS. FLATOW: Thank your local office

         18  for making me come back.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It's the first

         20  time that this has ever happened in my memory that

         21  the police got the wrong information and being a

         22  part of that, at least for this Committee.

         23                 It's unfortunate, but I'm grateful

         24  that you were able to work your way in and to give

         25  us some very valuable testimony.  We appreciate
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          2  that.

          3                 With no one else wishing to be heard,

          4  this hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SUSAN FERRARA, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 26th day of February 2007.
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         25                          SUSAN FERRARA
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          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, SUSAN FERRARA, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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